
 
 
 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 5 

77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD 
CHICAGO, IL  60604-3590 

 
 
 
 
ELECTRONIC MAIL 
DELIVERY RECEIPT REQUESTED 
 
Ms. Martina Hozjan Ruda 
Vice President 
MAH Machine Company 
3301 South Central Avenue 
Cicero, Illinois 60804 
tina.hozjan@mahmachine.com 
 
Re: Consent Agreement and Final Order  

MAH Machine Company (U.S. EPA I.D. No.: ILD984820043) 
Docket No:                  

 
Dear Ms. Hozjan Ruda:  
 
Attached please find a copy of the signed, fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) in resolution of the above case. The original was filed on ___________________, with 
the Regional Hearing Clerk (RHC). 
 
Please pay the civil penalty in the amount of $34,502.04 in the manner prescribed in paragraph  
41 of the CAFO and reference all checks with the docket number ___________________.   
 
Your payment is due within 90 calendar days of the effective date of the CAFO. Thank you for 
your cooperation in resolving this matter. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Todd Brown, of my staff, at 
brown.todd@epa.gov or (312) 886-6091.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Michael Cunningham, Acting Chief 
RCRA Compliance Section 1     
 
Attachment           
 
cc: Paul Eisenbrandt, Illinois EPA (paul.eisenbrandt@illinois.gov)  

James Jennings, Illinois EPA (james.m.jennings@illinois.gov) 
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22. On December 15, 2020, U.S. EPA sent to Respondent a Notice of Potential RCRA 

Violations and Opportunity for Settlement.  

23. The Notice letter identified potential RCRA violations, and an option and timeline 

for resolution of the matter through a streamlined settlement process. 

24. The goal of the streamlined settlement process is to quickly and efficiently assess 

and resolve the matter, bring the facility into compliance, and enter into an agreed upon CAFO. 

25. Thereafter, Respondent engaged with U.S. EPA to expeditiously assess the matter 

and agreed to the entry of this CAFO. 

Alleged Violations 

Count I:  Notification of Change of Hazardous Waste Activity 

26. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 25 of this CAFO as though set forth 

in this paragraph. 

27. Pursuant to Ill. Admin. Code tit. 35, § 722.110(b), a generator must determine the 

quantity of hazardous waste generated per month, so as to allow the generator to determine the 

applicability of the provisions of Ill. Admin. Code tit. 35, Part 722 that are dependent on quantity 

generated per month. 

28. Pursuant to Section 3010(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6930(a), generators are required 

to file with an authorized State a notification (or if necessary a subsequent notification) including 

the types of wastes handled and the type of hazardous waste activity (e.g., change to Large 

Quantity Generator status). 

29. Section 3010(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6930(a), is implemented through EPA Form 

8700-12 (OMB 2050-0024), which requires notification if, among other things, a generator’s 

hazardous waste activity changes to Large Quantity Generator status. 
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30. From at least 2017 until the present, Respondent did not submit a notification of the 

change of the facility’s type of hazardous waste activity to Large Quantity Generator status in 

relevant months, in violation of Section 3010(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6930(a). 

Count II:  Annual Reporting 

31. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 25 of this CAFO as though set forth 

in this paragraph. 

32. Pursuant to Ill. Admin. Code tit. 35, § 722.141, a generator of more than 1,000 

kilograms of hazardous waste must provide to the director or the director’s designee the data 

necessary for the department to prepare and submit Illinois’ hazardous waste report as required.  

An Annual Report is due by March 1 of each year. 

33. In 2018, 2019 and 2020, Respondent did not prepare and submit an annual report to 

the State of Illinois by March 1 for the preceding calendar year, in violation of Ill. Admin. Code 

tit. 35, § 722.141. 

Compliance Order 

34. Pursuant to Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3), Respondent is 

hereby ordered to comply with the following requirements as expeditiously as possible and no 

later than 60 days from the effective date of this CAFO. 

35. Respondent shall file with Illinois an updated Notification of RCRA Subtitle C 

Activities (e.g., Site Identification Form 8700-12), including the types of wastes handled and the 

type of hazardous waste activity (e.g., change to Large Quantity Generator status). This updated 

Notification may be filed along with the Annual Hazardous Waste Reports. 

36. Respondent shall file with Illinois Annual Hazardous Waste Reports covering the 

years 2017 through 2019. 
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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 
In the matter of MAH Machine Company, Cicero, Illinois. 
Docket Number: 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 
I certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final 

Order, docket number __________________________, which was filed on  

___________________________  in the following manner to the following addresses: 
 
 
Copy by E-mail to  
Respondent:    Martina Hozjan Ruda, Vice President 

tina.hozjan@mahmachine.com 
       

Copy by E-mail to     
Attorney for Complainant:  Adam Mittermaier  

mittermaier.adam@epa.gov 
  

Copy by E-mail to 
RCRA CS1 Contact:   Todd Brown 
     brown.todd@epa.gov     
 
Copy by E-mail to    
Regional Judicial Officer:  Ann Coyle  

coyle.ann@epa.gov  
 

      
 
 
 
Dated:                                              _____________________________________                                                                                                                                                           
     LaDawn Whitehead 
     Regional Hearing Clerk  

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency  
Region 5 
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